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MICHELE JOHNSON (President and Chief Executive Officer, Consumer Credit 

Counseling Service): 
I have written testimony (Exhibit I). 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
The real-life examples and the effort you are making to help people is something 
that needs to be shared with young people before they leave high school.  
 
MARK THOMSON (Director of Government Relations, Community Financial 

Services Association; Moneytree Incorporated): 
We support much of what is in the bill today. I have conceptual agreement on 
many of the issues. Many of the changes to Nevada law will bring it in line with 
laws in many other states. The current version of Exhibit F that you have before 
you we have had very little time to review. We would need some time to review 
the new language and we may still have one or two small issues but we are 
committed to working with everyone to move this bill forward. Community 
Financial Services Association (CFSA) recognizes this product is in a process of 
evolution. Hearings and processes such as this are part of that evolutionary 
process.  
 
I am a former regulator for the state of Washington. I spent 14 years regulating 
non-depository lenders at work throughout the 1990s with the legislature in the 
state of Washington to address many of these types of issues. I would get calls 
from the media throughout the 1990s about the rapid growth of this industry in 
our state. I could not figure out where the demand was coming from for this 
product. The demand had always been there and this size of loan had 
historically been made by consumer finance companies. These companies would 
take a lien on property or furniture in the house. Throughout the 1960s and 
1970s, if someone needed this kind of a loan, that is where they would go. 
What happened through time as these companies’ cost rose, it became more 
and more difficult for them to make those loans and still make a profit. By the 
end of 1970s and early 1980s when inflation had risen and interest rates had 
risen, they could no longer make a $300 loan under the interest-rate caps they 
operated under in most states and still make a profit.  
 
These companies in large part turned to making home-equity loans, refinances 
and they entered the real estate market. Therefore, there was a market niche 
left open. It is a market niche where you are making a very small loan and 
where the cost of making that loan is very high relative to the amount of the 

000251

000251

00
02

51
000251



Senate Committee on Commerce and Labor 
May 6, 2005 
Page 19 
 
loan. Everything about this industry evolves from the economics of that 
equation. The facts are that you are making a small loan and you need to limit 
the cost associated with each loan and the fee has to be high enough to cover 
those cost to make it economically viable.  
 
In most of the states where we operate, credit unions are trying to get into this 
business. They find it very difficult to make it economically viable. The more 
underwriting, the more disclosure and the more process there is in making the 
loan, the higher the cost. Banks and credit unions are in this product. Their 
product is called overdraft protection. It is a very different animal, legally. Under 
truth and lending, it is not an extension of credit and does not need to be 
disclosed as such. The product would not work if it was treated as an extension 
of credit under truth and lending. If you calculated an APR on an overdraft 
protection, it would be very similar to what a deferred-deposit lender charges. It 
is very costly to provide that credit relative to the size of the loan. 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
The only issue there is that you need to have a checking account before you 
need overdraft protection. 
 
MR. THOMSON: 
That is correct, and in order to get a deferred deposit loan you have to have a 
checking account. It is a very similar product, economically. 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
Are you trying to tell me that you have not seen the bill and you cannot 
comment on it? If so, how long will it take you to look at the bill? 
 
MR. THOMSON: 
We support most of the bill but need to look at certain provisions. We can look 
over the bill this weekend. In section 74 of the bill, it allows consumers to bring 
action against us and get statutory and punitive damages. Our main concern 
with statutory and punitive damages is that they do not become a magnet for 
class actions for technical violations of the statute that do not cause actual 
damages to the consumers. The more we can narrow that down to violations of 
licensing provisions and violations of the new section 44, limitations on the 
interest that can be collected on the back end, the better. 
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SENATOR TIFFANY: 
In section 44 of the bill, it is reshaping the way you can collect the debt, the 
interest on the debt and the time on the debt and we do that statutorily. You 
made the comment that this is a very short-term loan with a high cost and a 
high-risk pool to whom you are loaning. Does section 44 regulate satisfactorily 
so you can stay in business and make a profit and still offer this service? 
 
MR. THOMSON: 
Moneytree is one of the companies that does not sue and it states in our loan 
agreement that we will not take civil action. It will not impact us but there are 
other good actors that have used that authority and I will pass your question to 
Jim Marchesi. 
 
JIM MARCHESI (President/Chief Executive Officer, Nevada Financial Service 

Association; President/Chief Executive Officer, Check City): 
As the bill is proposed, we have a conceptual agreement on what we could and 
could not live with going into it. Section 44, without having had time to look 
through it, I think is okay. We still have some very legitimate concerns about 
sections 42 and 74 of the bill, but we can continue through and work on it and 
work it out. I hope I answered your question. 
 
SENATOR TIFFANY: 
In order for me to vote on the bill, I would have to make sure the good actors 
can still stay in business. If that cuts out the bad guys the better it is, so that is 
what I wanted to hear from you. It sounds like you want sections 74 and 75, 
the penalty part, to be better defined. 
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
Yes, and some additional work on section 42 of the bill. 
 
SENATOR TIFFANY:  
What is section 42 of the bill? 
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
Section 42 of A.B. 384 is a repayment plan. When a customer now goes into 
default, we will work with that customer for a long time to try to get them to 
make the payment. For 30 to 60 days, we find operators will try to encourage 
the customer to repay their note. At that point you make a decision. Some 
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companies will continue to try to collect and others will use the court system to 
recoup the money.  
 
The examples you saw today are from the bad actors. When you sit back and 
look at the industry, there are a few companies that have a very large portion of 
the market who operate 100 percent within the statute. You also have the small 
segment of the industry that is shared among a bunch of other players and in 
that bunch inevitably there will be somebody who does not live by the existing 
statute or is going to find the gray areas and work down the gray areas. Those 
practices have to stop. 
 
SENATOR TIFFANY: 
Would you like to see further movement on section 42 of the bill? 
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
Absolutely 
 
SENATOR LEE: 
I would like to ask about the underwriting process for mainstream lenders. 
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
Underwriting in the industry is very broad and different companies conduct 
underwriting in vastly different ways. The high underwriting company can do 
things from pulling credit reports to pulling tele-track. This gives you a read on 
the customer’s repayment behavior. Those who use this service will take the 
information they get and use it in the decision about whether they should or 
should not loan. 
 
The other end of the spectrum is that you look to see if a person has a bank 
account and a job and then do your underwriting through confirming other items 
that are on their application. The breadth of underwriting can really go quite 
some way. In the free market system, each operator makes that decision on 
their own. If you say the limited underwriter is doing the limited underwriting so 
he can use the back end as an income source, A.B. 384 takes care of that. 
 
You brought up the consumer with 16 loans. The consumer has responsibility in 
determining what credit they use and where they use it. Our task force became 
an education to both sides. We helped the people who were on the task force 
and taught them about the business; likewise, they taught us a lot about their 
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concerns. Overall, the matrix of people who use the product use it responsibly. 
I understand the people who Assemblywoman Buckley sees in her real-world 
job. We want to encourage consumer responsibility. A lot of this bill is to try to 
get these best practices in the statute.  
 
SENATOR LEE: 
I would agree that your demographics are typically a guy in his mid-30s with a 
wife and child. 
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
Our customers are middle income, well educated and homeowners who are 
hard-working Americans. It is not the other extreme who get painted in the 
media a lot, the poorest of the poor, who are using the product. Looking at it 
from a business standpoint, would it make sense for us to loan money to people 
who could not legitimately have a chance to pay us back? The answer is no. 
 
NATASHA FOOMAN (Advance America): 
I want to state for the record that we really appreciate all the effort and time 
Assemblywoman Buckley and her staff have put into this bill in bringing the 
industry and consumer groups together. My colleagues and I believe in 
responsible lending and that is why we are here at the table today in support of 
this bill conceptually.  
 
SENATOR TIFFANY: 
Are you aware of anybody in the industry who provides training to high school 
or college students?  
 
MR. THOMSON: 
Community Financial Services Association (CFSA) has a financial literacy 
program called CFSA-access that is made available to whomever would like it. 
 
SENATOR TIFFANY: 
Do you reach out to do some education? 
 
MR. THOMSON: 
Yes 
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SENATOR TIFFANY: 
I believe Wells Fargo Bank offers education, too. I know we had addressed this, 
Mr. Chair, because you were concerned whether there was curriculum available. 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
Maybe we need a coordination of those efforts or a real focused opportunity we 
can work on over the next few years to make this education available. I used to 
teach a Junior Achievement class in junior high school. It was one of the most 
enjoyable things I did. I would leave the class after teaching so excited because 
the kids just soak up this information. I was thinking if the students are so 
excited about the class, why is Junior Achievement teaching these classes 
instead of the school system. 
 
MIKE REED (Vice President, General Counsel, Loan Max): 
We did not know about A.B. 384 until a few days before it was scheduled for a 
floor vote in the Assembly. We are appreciative of the Assembly majority 
leader’s willingness to work with us to address some of our concerns. Our 
company strongly supports reasonable regulation. Some concepts related to title 
loans were worked out between some members of the title-loan industry and 
the Assembly majority leader’s staff. I have not had an opportunity to review 
that language yet but my company fully supports the concepts as they were 
presented to me. We look forward to working with this Committee and the 
Assembly majority leader to finalize A.B. 384, and we will be back on Monday. 
 
ROBERT REICH (Director, Consumer Lending Alliance National Organization of 

Affiliated Title Lenders): 
Our association and member companies deeply respect, want and need 
regulated environments. This bill goes a long way in providing a structure that 
really promotes a set of best practices which most title lenders in the State 
follow. All title lenders in the State would have a good road map and not have 
some of the fringe, fly-by-night operators. We agree conceptually with A.B. 384 
as well.  
 
Unlike payday loans, there can be no concept of multiple loans to a title-loan 
customer. There can be only one lien on a vehicle so someone cannot take that 
vehicle around to multiple lenders and have 18 to 20 different loans in those 
extreme cases. 
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We have just seen the language when it was handed out to Committee. We 
need some time to review it over the weekend. The last set of discussion 
happened yesterday. We just want to make sure that there are no unintended 
consequences in the language, and we will be studying the bill over the 
weekend to ensure that such is not the case.  
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
Assemblywoman Smith asked me to put written testimony from Robbin Novello 
(Exhibit J) in the record. I will read from Exhibit J: “After some time, I received 
notice I was being taken to court, but even though the loan was obtained at a 
Sun Valley Loan store, I was taken to court in Las Vegas. Naturally, I could not 
take time off of work to go in the middle of the week, so of course, was 
‘defaulted’.” Assemblywoman Buckley, is there a section in the bill that 
I possibly missed that deals with this type of situation? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
I do not think that is in the bill. It would be in the prohibitive-practices section if 
it was and we can certainly add that. 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
I am not trying to put an amendment on this bill but I want it to be considered 
for Assemblywoman Smith’s constituent. 
 
MR. UFFELMAN: 
I want to answer a couple of questions that you had asked unrelated to the bill. 
Senate Bill (S.B.) 459, which the Senate passed on April 25, 2005, and is now 
over in the Assembly Committee on Education, specifically deals with financial 
education in the school system in Nevada. The Nevada Bankers Association 
provides free of charge to all Nevada teachers who request it a program called 
“Banking Is.” As mentioned, Wells Fargo Bank has a program and several 
organizations have free curriculum on financial responsibility. The month of April 
was financial literacy month and April 26 was teach children to save day. There 
is a wide variety of programs available to educators to teach the young about 
finance.  
 
SENATE BILL 459 (1st Reprint):  Requires instruction in financial responsibility in 

public high schools. (BDR 34-1093) 
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The Nevada Bankers Association appreciates Assemblywoman Buckley’s actions 
on this bill. We are 99.99 percent ready with the bill. We have one little addition 
that we just presented to her in the last couple of minutes because we saw the 
change this morning. I have sent to Kevin Powers and Scott Young a URL for 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) Financial Institution Letter 
1405A issued on March 1, 2005. It gives you all the details if a bank is going to 
do payday lending with restrictions and requirements related to it. This also 
applies to the credit unions. It is a tough business; it is sub-prime lending. It is 
an endless treadmill from the bank’s side. Some of the banks that have direct 
deposit with customers do allow advances against the direct deposit because 
they know the money is coming.  
 
JOSEPH W. BROWN (Security Finance Company): 
We are regulated by chapter 675 of the NRS as an installment-loan lender. We 
support the bill as amended. It needs a little bit of fine-tuning and I will allow 
Mr. Holt to explain that. 
 
PHILLIP HOLT (Vice President of Government Relations, Security Financial of 

Spartanburg, South Carolina): 
Our business practice is very similar to those that have been outlined. However, 
as an installment lender, we do not do payday loans so we do not take 
post-dated checks. Some of the issues we have regarding the simple payback 
process and the way it is being lumped into one sum as some of the examples 
were laid out on the overhead today. The information (Exhibit K) I will be 
handing out to you today shows we are members of the American Financial 
Services Association which is one of the largest trade groups for lenders in the 
State. We are large supporters of financial literacy but the difficulty is you can 
only do so much. The school districts have to be willing to find time in their 
curriculum to do these free educational programs for the junior high and high 
school levels. As Mr. Brown indicated, we are very close to reaching a complete 
agreement with the bill and look forward to working with you. 
 
SANDRA J. PERRY (Cash Express/Money Express Catalog Sales, Incorporated): 
I am not here today to address some of the concerns that the major players 
within the industry have already adequately addressed. I just want to address 
concerns that I have as a small-business owner. I have concerns (Exhibit L) on 
the bill. Section 8; section 23; section 42, subsection 2, paragraph (a) and 
section 42, subsection 3, paragraph (a) of A.B. 384 concern default. I know the 
Legislators are trying to help the consumer and make it easier for all of us to 
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operate within the framework of the law. I do see a problem with this. The 
problem is addressed in Exhibit L. I have a question, how are we supposed to 
operate within this framework and still make a profit? We now work with our 
customers on an individual basis. We try to do whatever they want to do and 
make it work for both parties.  
 
In the example I have given in Exhibit L, under the proposed bill as written, we 
would be forced to deposit the borrower’s check on Saturday. This would be in 
the hopes of avoiding having our money out for a term of over 18 weeks. The 
18 weeks would include 4 months and 15 days from date of notice of default. 
There is a strong possibility that by depositing that person’s check on Saturday 
as A.B. 384 proposes, our check or others that this person has written will be 
returned because of non-sufficient funds (NSF). In the event our check is 
returned, an additional $25 will be added to their fees. At this point the 
borrower may be faced with numerous returned bank charges that could 
possibly add up to $175 or more for a small $100 loan. On a $100 loan, it 
would cost them 4 cents a day for 8 weeks if we charged interest. I ask you as 
a business owner trying to make a profit, what would you do? 
 
I do have a suggestion for a solution. I think the period of default should not be 
on the day that it is due. There should be a period of at least 15 days in which 
to allow us to confer with our customer to possibly make an extension or work 
something out. We should be allowed to charge interest during this period of 
time. This is my request in regard to that portion of the bill. 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
Are you looking at the printed bill or do you have a copy of the changes to the 
bill that we faxed or e-mailed to you? 
 
MS. PERRY: 
I pulled the amended bill off the Internet. 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
There is a mock-up amended version. When I look at your section 8, it may not 
be the same one. What is the next section you are on? 
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MS. PERRY: 
The next section I would like to address is section 39. My question and solution 
are discussed in Exhibit L.  
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
You were making reference to section 39 of the bill? 
 
MS. PERRY: 
Yes.  
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
I have written testimony (Exhibit M) from D.C. Younger who could not be 
present today.  
 
I will close the hearing on A.B. 384 and I will open the hearing on A.B. 340. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 340 (1st Reprint): Revises provisions relating to certain 

short-term, high interest loans. (BDR 52-126) 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN CHRIS GIUNCHIGLIANI (Assembly District No. 9): 
My student intern, Chris Dorman, has been working on this legislation and has 
worked through the changes as well as the original presentation.  
 
CHRIS DORMAN (Intern to Assemblywoman Giunchigliani): 
The bill has been reduced significantly from its original form. It addresses only 
two issues regarding the marginal-lending industry. It would require counties, 
cities and the like to set up zoning laws regarding payday-loan places and 
title-loan businesses. I have a proposed amendment to A.B. 340 (Exhibit N). 
These restrictions would not apply ideally to counties with populations under 
100,000 people. If local government has already adopted regulations regarding 
the zoning for payday-loan businesses or title-loan businesses, it would not 
apply either. The city of Las Vegas, North Las Vegas and Clark County have 
already adopted zoning laws specifically regarding the payday-loan industry.  
 
The second issue of the act deals with refund anticipation loans (RALs). I have 
handed out some articles (Exhibit O) regarding this issue. This is just a first step 
in what the State should do to regulate this industry. The RALs are tax 
preparation services like H&R Block that are willing to provide an advance to a 
consumer on what they believe their tax refund will be based on the work they 
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provisions of the chapter within that common, standard dictionary 
definition. 
 

SENATOR HECK: 
If we are going to use the common, customary definition, what was your 
intent? Is this like an automated teller machine (ATM) type device? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN GIUNCHIGLIANI: 
Yes. 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
When I first read this, I thought about a kiosk being a small structure in which a 
salesperson stands similar to the ones they put in center of malls down the 
walkways. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN GIUNCHIGLIANI: 
There may be a different term that we would prefer to use. 
 
MR. POWERS: 

Mr. Chairman, I might add as well that … A.B. 340 prohibits the 
Commissioner from issuing a license for a person to do business at 
a kiosk, whereas A.B. 384 does not have that prohibition. In fact, 
A.B. 384 permits that activity as long as it falls under that new 
regulatory chapter. So, there is a conflict between the two bills. 
 

MS. PERRY: 
I was a little unsure of what the meaning of kiosk was referring to within our 
industry. In an effort to try to protect my branch stores and the income I receive 
from those stores, I might mention my branch in Henderson is inside a 
Smith’s store and it is with a PostNet Express. All of our business is handled 
through our main branch where we do all the contracts and approvals and do all 
the contacts with the customer so the store is utilized as simply a means to give 
out money and take in money. Everything else is provided from the main store 
by either fax or e-mail. My written concerns are stated in my handout 
(Exhibit P). 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
What does your store look like? 
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MS. PERRY: 
The store is as you would see PostNet Express within a Smith’s grocery. There 
is a counter and it is a space that is utilized for two different services. That 
would be express mailing and also the service of my business. 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
We would have to ask the sponsor of the bill if that is the type of thing she was 
including. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN GIUNCHIGLIANI: 
No, it would not be. 
 
SENATOR HARDY: 
We could probably statutorily define that because I know some of the small 
stores like Sprint and AT&T in the malls, if you look them up in the Internet, are 
called kiosk stores. If we contemplate it being something other than that, we 
ought to define it. 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
I believe Assemblywoman Giunchigliani is trying to establish someone with 
substance, someone who is going to be there tomorrow, a month from now or a 
year from now. Longevity is what you are looking for so if a customer has a 
problem they have an appropriate place to go.  
 
I have written testimony from people who could not attend today’s meeting. 
The written testimony is from Ronald L. Barrett (Exhibit Q), Julie Cairns 
(Exhibit R) and Ken Indra (Exhibit S). There are also concerns from D.C. Younger 
on this bill in Exhibit M.  
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
The bill has three primary sections. The first is the 800 number; the industry is 
in support of the 800 number. The second issue is the requirement for the 
municipalities to form some restrictions or guidelines on how the industry ought 
to behave. We have worked very closely with Assemblywoman Giunchigliani on 
the bill we believe that should be left in the hands of the municipalities and not 
be dictated by the state government. Our view is that it would be an 
unnecessary provision at this point and allow them to do that. The third issue 
I want to talk about is the RALs. There are a tremendous number of federal 
regulations that are required anytime that you do one of those loans. In the 
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issue of posting the rates, there are a vast number of different ways that those 
products are done and I do not think there would be any objections.  
 
I will not go into a defense of H&R Block, because I do not know anything about 
their lawsuits. In general, there are already a lot of federal regulations in the 
area of RALs. 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
I never thought about RALs in terms of what we talked about in the previous 
bill. 
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
It is a completely different product. My company does tax preparation; we do 
not do RALs. One of the things done at the end is to offer the customer an 
option. Do you want us to submit your return by mail, electronically, or do you 
want to take an advance on the return. It is not a product that we do because it 
is a federal product. We are just an agent of a company, Bank One, that does 
RALs.  
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
Are you going to start offering credit cards, too? 
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
Yes, I think with the brick and mortar stores there are a lot of financial services 
that really make sense for those of us who have brick and mortar stores. An 
answer to your Internet question, yes, there are people who provide RALs via 
the Internet. I know they are offered because at the end of the Turbo Tax 
program there are options that you can select. 
 
MR. UFFELMAN: 
A kiosk is defined as a small area set off by walls for a special use.  
 
You have recognized the need to integrate A.B. 340 with A.B. 384. We would 
like to urge at the minimum that the Division of Financial Institutions, 
Department of Business and Industry, look for guidance in the words of 
A.B. 384 when it comes to the definition of payday loans. 
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MR. POWERS: 

Mr. Chairman, to follow up on that, there are several sections in 
A.B. 340 that would need to be altered or incorporated in the 
A.B. 384 if we are going to process this bill. The reason being is 
that A.B. 384 eliminates chapter 604 of NRS and then payday 
loans are all put in the new chapter in A.B. 384; so are the 
provisions in 675 dealing with payday loans in A.B. 340. 
 

CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
If the Committee is interested in any provisions of A.B. 340, maybe, they 
should go appropriately into the other one just because it has been restructured. 
 
MR. POWERS: 

Yes, Mr. Chairman, in my review of A.B. 340 is that sections 3 
and 4 of the bill dealing with zoning could stand on their own and 
be unconnected completely with A.B. 384. They refer to 
check-cashing services or deferred-deposit services pursuant to 
chapter 604 of NRS but that sort of conflict can be resolved at the 
end of the Session. Then, section 7 dealing with the tax-refund 
anticipation loans, that could stand on its own in chapter 675 of 
NRS. 

 
MR. MARCHESI: 
One other thing for the Committee to consider is S.B. 431, which is 
Commissioner Tidd’s bill, which also will require some integration into these 
other two bills. 
 
SENATE BILL 431 (1st Reprint): Makes various changes to provisions governing 

financial institutions and related business entities. (BDR 55-361) 
 
MR. POWERS: 

That is correct, Mr. Chairman. That bill also contains provisions 
dealing with chapters 604 and 675 of NRS. That is in the 
Assembly side so they would have to consider that either during 
their deliberations in commerce and labor or when the bills are 
enrolled resolving them at the end of Session. 
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CHAIRMAN TOWNSEND: 
I will leave that up to you in terms of your workload, if you just want to leave it 
for reconciliation or at the end, rather than trying to fix them all at once. 
 
MR. POWERS: 
“That may be one approach. I think with A.B. 340 and A.B. 384 that can be 
done in this Committee as we send them out.” 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
I will close the hearing on A.B. 340 and open the hearing on A.B. 437. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 437 (1st Reprint): Revises provisions governing manufactured 

home parks. (BDR 10-1027) 
 
JOSEPH GUILD (Manufactured Home Community Owners): 
Assemblywoman Buckley was going to join me here and there is an amendment 
in my handwriting (Exhibit T). Assemblywoman Buckley’s executive assistant is 
typing a version of this as we speak. For Mr. Young’s purposes and for the 
permanent record of the Committee, you will have a typed version of the 
amendment (Exhibit U). 
 
Assembly Bill 437 is a product of a collaboration between various groups of 
people interested in mobile home parks, tenants and landlords. Years ago, the 
then majority leader, Assemblyman Perkins, asked the groups to get together 
during the interim if there were necessary revisions to chapter 118B of the NRS, 
which is the mobile-home-landlord-tenant law in the State, bringing to the 
Legislature the consensus bill so we would not have to battle the bills, which 
was the occurrence for many Sessions prior to that. You have the collaborative 
effort before you. This is really a clean-up bill; there are no big changes here. 
 
I will start with section 1 of the bill. If a landlord bills individually for utility 
charges, they must post or provide each tenant who is affected a copy of the 
utility bill for the park. The tenants then know what the park is paying in 
addition to what they are paying.  
 
Section 3 of the bill states that when, as is required after 25 percent of the 
persons in a mobile home park or manufactured-home community ask for a 
meeting with the owner of the park, that somebody with some authority to 
make decisions and with an understanding of the operations of that park, meet 
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CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
I will open the hearing on Assembly Bill (A.B.) 384. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 384 (1st Reprint): Makes various changes relating to certain 

short-term, high-interest loans. (BDR 52-806) 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BARBARA E. BUCKLEY (Assembly District No. 8): 
I met with representatives from the industry to develop proposed amendments 
(Exhibit C). This is based on the mock-up of the bill used at Friday's meeting of 
the Committee (Exhibit D). I will review the proposed amendments. 
 
In section 19, subsection 1 of the bill, the definition of "title loan" is changed. 
 
In section 34, subsection 1, we deleted the phrase: "in which the terms of 
repayment require a payment or payments." This is a technical change.  
 
In section 34, subsection 2, paragraph (c), in addition to the language noted in 
Exhibit C, I would like to add the phrase "not to exceed $50" after the words 
"reasonable documentary fee." 
 
In section 49, the language is rewritten to clarify the bonding amounts.  
 
In section 74, a new subsection 2 is added to make it clear that the damages 
section does not apply to honest or technical mistakes that do not cause harm. 
This is the language used in the federal Truth In Lending Act of 1968. This will 
allow us to catch those ignoring the law without penalizing those who simply 
make a typographical error. 
 
The final amendment adds language stipulating that a licensee cannot sue in a 
venue other than where the loan was made. This is in response to a suggestion 
made at the Committee meeting on May 6, 2005. 
 
Section 42 is rewritten in its entirety, as shown on the second page of 
Exhibit C. This has to do with the repayment provision. It requires that before 
proceeding with civil action, repossession or any other resolution of 
nonpayment, the licensee offer the customer the opportunity to enter a 
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repayment plan. If the customer defaults on the repayment plan, the licensee 
can then proceed to civil action or repossession to resolve the balance. 
 
SENATOR HECK: 
In Exhibit D, a "short-term loan" is defined as one required to be repaid in 
18 months rather than 12 months. What is the reasoning behind this? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
This was requested by lenders. I have not heard from any lender who will be 
adversely affected by this change.  
 
SENATOR HECK: 
I commend the protections for members of the armed forces in section 33. Are 
these types of loans subject to the Soldiers' and Sailors' Civil Relief Act 
of 1940, which caps loans at 6-percent interest? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
Yes.  
 
SCOTT YOUNG (Committee Policy Analyst): 
We have received written testimony from Cynthia Fedelleck (Exhibit E), Sandra 
Perry (Exhibit F) and Charles Brennan (Exhibit G).  
 
JIM MARCHESI (President/Chief Executive Officer, Check City): 
We have an amendment to offer (Exhibit H) which makes two additions to the 
bill.  
 
In section 32, we have added a new subsection 2 allowing the licensee to 
charge a onetime late fee of $25 if a customer defaults on a short-term loan. As 
the bill is currently written, there is no penalty for defaulting on a payment. This 
late fee would give the customer some incentive to make payments on time.  
 
SENATOR CARLTON: 
If someone is already in debt, digging the hole a little deeper is not going to act 
as an incentive to pay off the debt.  
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
This is a request of lenders who do unsecured loans. They have no other late 
payments. I believe this is a reasonable request. 
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In section 44, we have deleted the final sentence of subsection 1, 
paragraph (c). This eliminates the limit of 12 weeks on the time the licensee 
may charge the prime rate plus 10 percent. 
 
SENATOR CARLTON: 
I have some concerns about this. The purpose of a repayment provision is to 
resolve the matter. You are proposing to make it open-ended. Why would you 
not want to have this thing done? 
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
The repayment plan currently requires the lender to provide a free extension of 
credit to the customer for 90 days. We are asking for a minimal continuation, 
and nothing that is not allowed for any other lender. If the customer defaults on 
the repayment plan, the bill as written would allow the lender to charge interest 
at the prime rate plus 10 percent for 12 weeks. Collecting on a defaulted loan 
can take six months or more. We would therefore like to remove the 12-week 
limit on the amount of time the lender can charge prime plus 10 percent. 
 
SENATOR CARLTON: 
My concern is that the money has been paid back many times over, but just not 
to the satisfaction of the lender at the triple-digit interest rates being charged. 
I will respectfully disagree with you on the fairness of the request. 
 
SENATOR LEE: 
In section 28 of Exhibit H, why are you deleting subsection 2? 
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
Subsection 2 was deleted to simplify the language. The provision has never 
been used and serves no purpose. We have no objection to leaving it in. 
 
SENATOR HECK: 
What was the rationale for changing the definition of "short-term loan" from 
12 months to 18 months? I would have thought it would be to your advantage 
to have fewer loans coming under these guidelines. 
 
MR. MARCHESI: 
This was not our suggestion.  
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MARK THOMSON (Nevada Financial Services Association; Community Financial 

Services Association of America): 
We support the amendments offered in Exhibit C. We are neutral on any other 
amendments. 
 
KIM KOSTER (Koster Finance): 
This bill will drive me out of business. If the repayment period is an interest-free 
period, a lender making an unsecured loan has no recourse in case of default. 
None of my customers will be stupid enough to pay me when they can be 
one day late on a payment and automatically have an interest-free loan with no 
late fees and no penalties. The unsecured-loan industry will go out of business 
in Nevada. 
 
KEITH LEE (Consumer Lending Alliance): 
There seems to be a misunderstanding about the provision regarding the 
repayment plan. The repayment plan is not an interest-free period. Additional 
interest cannot be charged, but the original contract interest rate still applies. 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
It was our intention that the original contract be in effect and unchanged during 
the repayment period. If the customer defaults on the repayment plan, the 
lender may go to court.  
 
MR. LEE: 
Will the originally-contracted interest continue to accrue during the repayment 
period? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
The intention was that it would not. 
 
MS. KOSTER: 
I misunderstood the repayment provision. I withdraw my objection. 
 
NOEL SHECKELLS (Budget Loans): 
I had the same objection as Ms. Koster and will likewise withdraw my objection. 
 
JOHN M. VERGIELS (Nevada Financial Services Association): 
With that clarification, we will withdraw the two changes suggested in 
Exhibit H. 
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CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
I will close the hearing on A.B. 384. If staff will produce a new mock-up with 
the agreed-upon changes by Wednesday, we will discuss the bill again in the 
Committee meeting on Thursday. 
 
Is there any further comment? Hearing none, I will adjourn this meeting at 
11:02 a.m.  
 
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 
 
 
 

  
Lynn Hendricks, 
Committee Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
  
Senator Randolph J. Townsend, Chair 
 
 
DATE:  
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COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
Senator Randolph J. Townsend, Chair 
Senator Warren B. Hardy II, Vice Chair 
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Senator John Lee 
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OTHERS PRESENT: 
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CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
I will open the hearing on Assembly Bill (A.B.) 340. 
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ASSEMBLY BILL 340 (1st Reprint): Revises provisions relating to certain 

short-term, high interest loans. (BDR 52-126) 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
I have a revised mock-up of the bill (Exhibit C). Please review it for discussion at 
our meeting on Wednesday. 
 
I will close the hearing on A.B. 340 and open the hearing on A.B. 384.  
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 384 (1st Reprint): Makes various changes relating to certain 

short-term, high-interest loans. (BDR 52-806) 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BARBARA E. BUCKLEY (Assembly District No. 8): 
I have a revised mock-up of the bill (Exhibit D). In addition, I have a document 
with technical amendments (Exhibit E) to reflect the understanding that has 
been reached. This document was e-mailed to all those involved in the 
discussion.  
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
The Committee has also received written testimony on this bill from Carl Hull 
(Exhibit F), Sandra Perry (Exhibit G) and Mark Mowatt (Exhibit H). 
 
I will close the hearing on A.B. 384 and open the hearing on A.B. 19.  
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 19 (1st Reprint): Prohibits, under certain circumstances, 

issuance of gift certificate that contains expiration date and prohibits, 
under certain circumstances, issuer of gift certificate from charging 
certain fees to buyer or holder of gift certificate. (BDR 52-558) 

 
SENATOR LEE: 
Some of the changes we wanted to make have been incorporated into this bill. 
Other changes will be held over for the next Legislative Session. I will bring it 
back to the Committee on Wednesday. 
 
CHAIR TOWNSEND: 
I will close the hearing on A.B. 19 and open the hearing on A.B. 44.  
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